UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Councill

E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
6 April 1998

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COWM SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-fourth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 26t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 1 April 1998, at 10 a.m

Chai r man: M . SELEBI (South Africa)

later: M GALLEGOS CHI RI BOGA ( Ecuador)
(Vi ce-Chai rnan)

CONTENTS

REPORT OF THE SUB- COVMM SSI ON ON PREVENTI ON OF DI SCRI M NATI ON AND PROTECTI ON OF
M NORI TIES ON I TS FORTY- NI NTH SESSI ON (conti nued)

QUESTI ON OF THE HUVAN RI GHTS OF ALL PERSONS SUBJECTED TO ANY FORM OF DETENTI ON
OR | MPRI SONMENT, | N PARTI CULAR:

(a) TORTURE AND OTHER CRUEL, | NHUVAN OR DEGRADI NG TREATMENT OR
PUNI' SHMVENT;

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Comn ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98-11567 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26

page 2

(b)

(¢)
(d)

CONTENTS (conti nued)

STATUS OF THE CONVENTI ON AGAI NST TORTURE AND OTHER CRUEL, | NHUMAN
OR DEGRADI NG TREATMENT OR PUNI SHVENT;

QUESTI ON OF ENFORCED OR | NVOLUNTARY DI SAPPEARANCES;
QUESTI ON OF A DRAFT OPTI ONAL PROTOCOL TO THE CONVENTI ON AGAI NST

TORTURE AND OTHER CRUEL, | NHUVAN OR DEGRADI NG TREATMENT OR
PUNI SHMENT



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 3

The neeting was called to order at 10 a.m

REPORT OF THE SUB- COVM SSI ON ON PREVENTI ON OF DI SCRI M NATI ON AND PROTECTI ON OF
M NORI TIES ON I TS FORTY- NI NTH SESSI ON (agenda item 15) (conti nued)

(E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ 2- E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ 50, E/CN. 4/1998/86, 87 and Add.1, 88 and 89;
E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ NGO 1; E/CN. 4/1997/80; E/ CN. 4/ Sub.2/1997/11)

1. M. GARCIA (International Indian Treaty Council) said that his

organi zati on supported efforts to create a provision for third-party
arbitration and a structure for settling disputes between CGovernnments and
those claimng to have suffered discrim nation, whether in the past or in the
present. | ndigenous peoples needed access to a truly independent forumin
order to address issues such as land rights and reparations for past abuses.
He reiterated the call for a followup visit and report by the Specia
Rapporteur on religious intolerance in connection with the situation of
religious discrimnation currently at issue in the United States of America at
Big Mountain, Arizona. His organization supported efforts to establish
readi |y comprehensi ble standards relating to discrimnation and persons
suffering fromdiscrimnation and, to that end, supported proposals for the
provi sion of |egal and technical assistance to Governnments with a viewto
ensuring that both Governments and hurman rights nmonitors were properly trained
and that the standards in question were adequately enforced.

2. Ms. NORDSTROM (World Blind Union), speaking also on behalf of the World
Federati on of the Deaf and several other associations representing disabled
persons throughout the world, said that the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts shoul d
request the Special Rapporteur on disability of the Conm ssion for Socia

Devel opnent to conpile a report on violations of the human rights of persons
with disabilities, with special focus on the problenms of wonmen and chil dren
with disabilities, and to transnit it upon conpletion to the Hi gh Comm ssi oner
for Human Ri ghts.

3. The Commi ssion on Hunman Rights should then take the initiative of
convening a conference to discuss the report's findings. She further proposed
that the Comm ssion should develop strategies in connection with human rights
i ssues relating to persons with disabilities and, in particular, should | ook
into ways of involving non-governnental organizations (NGOs) active in the
field of disabilities nore directly inits future work. All Menber States
shoul d ensure through legislation that disability was recogni zed as a hunman
rights issue. Persons with disabilities had to be offered equal opportunities
in all spheres of life.

4, M. WAHLSTROM (I nclusion International) said that the Conmm ssion shoul d
do nore to bring its decisions relating to persons with disabilities to the
attention of the NGOs active in that field. H s own organization was
cooperating in the preparation of a report on violations of the human rights
of disabled persons, especially those with mental handi caps, which it hoped to
transmt to the Secretary-General in the sumrer of 1998. Part 2 of the report
woul d contain exanples of good practice fromcountries in various parts of the
world. The efforts being made in South Africa and Romania to redress the
appal ling situation of disabled people, particularly children, deserved
speci al commrendati on

5. He appeal ed to the nenbers of the Commri ssion to respond positively to
the Econom ¢ and Social Council resolution on equalization of opportunities



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 4

for persons with disabilities, to nmake contributions to the United Nations
Vol untary Fund on Disability and to support the recomrendati ons of the Specia
Rapporteur on disability, especially that regarding a distinct disability
conmponent in all the nmonitoring activities of United Nations human rights
entities.

6. M. SIMAS MARGALHAES (Brazil) said that the Sub-Conm ssion, which had
originally been established to provide the Conm ssion with the necessary
techni cal expertise, should nmake every effort to avoid politicization and
duplication of the work of the Commission itself. |Its decision, as reported
by its Chairman, to take no action on human rights situations that were
normal |y consi dered under the Comnr ssion's agenda was therefore very wel cone.

7. Hi s del egation al so supported the Sub-Comri ssion's efforts to
rationalize its work. Many itens, of both a procedural and a substantive
nature, could be grouped together without |oss of quality as the Conm ssion's
own practice denonstrated. The Sub- Commi ssion should al so strengthen stil
further its Iinks with human rights NGOs, which could provide it with valuable
i nformati on on the situation of human rights in all parts of the world. His
Governnment stood ready to cooperate with the Sub-Comm ssion by supplying al
necessary information to its working groups and in connection with its reports
and studi es.

8. M. LIU Xinsheng (China) said he noted that the Sub-Commi ssion had taken
a nunber of positive steps in response to Conm ssion resolution 1997/22 and
expressed the hope that further practical neasures to inprove its working

met hods woul d be proposed at its next session. He noted with concern

however, that the consideration of country resolutions was still taking up a
great deal of the Sub-Commission's tinme and he urged all its nenbers to adopt
a prudent, objective and responsible position in that regard so as to limt

t he random and sel ective nature of the exercise.

9. Hi s del egati on had reservations with regard to the Sub-Commi ssion's
request for authorization to hold five-week sessions in the next three years
(resolution 1997/17) since it believed that, instead of enhancing the

Sub- Commi ssion's efficiency, such a step would nerely add to the | ogistic and
financi al burden upon the United Nations. The Sub-Comni ssion should
concentrate rather on making full use of the nmeeting tinme currently avail able
to it and should explore further ways of inproving its efficiency. Provided
that it proceeded fromcurrent international realities and focused its
attention on mgjor human rights issues of general concern to Menber States,
particularly those connected with economi c, social and cultural rights, the
Sub- Commi ssion would continue to fulfil its irreplaceable role as the

Conmi ssion's brains trust.

10. M. ZAKI (Pakistan), said that, in the 50 years of its existence, the
Sub- Commi ssi on had becone over-extended to the point of no |onger being able
to concentrate on its primary task of serving as the Comm ssion's think tank
Hi s del egation agreed with the view expressed in Sub-Comr ssi on

resol ution 1997/17 that the time available to it did not permt an in-depth
review and analysis of all the docunmentation and initiatives submtted for its
consideration. It thus supported efforts to rationalize the Sub-Comm ssion's
agenda. The reduction of the nunber of agenda items from 23 to 14 and the

bi enni al i zati on of certain sub-itenms had al ready helped to stream ine the work



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 5

of the 1997 session, and yet nore tine could be gained by further
prioritization of issues, nore concise docunmentation and strict enforcenent of
the speaking tinme limts.

11. As for the Sub-Comr ssion's nmethods of work, his delegation took the
view that it was perform ng satisfactorily the tasks entrusted to it under
Econom ¢ and Social Council resolutions 1235 (XLIl) and 1503 (XLVIII1). Any

i nprovenents in the confidential procedure would have to come through a review
of those resolutions. It appreciated the enphasis the Sub-Conmm ssion was

pl aci ng on econonic and social rights, welconed the conpletion of two studies
under that headi ng, and thought that the Sub-Conm ssion could be entrusted
with additional functions in the context of the inplementation of the right to
devel opnent.

12. It | ooked forward to the conpl etion of the ongoing studies and of the
wor ki ng paper being prepared on article 7 of the International Convention on
the Elimnation of All Forns of Racial Discrimnation. Wile the initia
paper presented by the Special Rapporteur on human rights and terrori sm was
useful, he thought that greater attention should be paid to the phenonenon of
State terrorismand the use of terrorismas an instrument of foreign

occupation. 1In addition, a greater effort should be nade to establish a
distinction between terrorist groups and national |iberation novenents.
13. The Sub- Commi ssion should al so devote special attention to the denial of

the right to self-determ nation of peoples under foreign dom nation or
occupation. Suppression of that right was the root cause of nany situations
of the nost systematic and serious violations of human rights, of which

Pal esti ne, Kosovo and Kashmir were exanpl es.

14. Hi s del egation entirely supported the Sub-Conmi ssion's role in providing
an opportunity for NGOs to participate in United Nations human rights work

and considered that the Comm ssion could benefit fromsome of the procedures
adopted by the Sub-Comm ssion in that regard. In conclusion, he agreed with
the Chairman of the Sub-Conm ssion that its working groups were the strongest
pillars of its work (E/CN. 4/1998/88, para. 13), adding that the question as to
how t he di scussi ons and outconmes of those working groups should relate to the
wor k of the Sub-Comm ssion in plenary could, perhaps, be answered by pointing
to the manner in which the Sub-Conmi ssion's work was considered by the

Conmi ssion itself.

15. M . SEMASHKO (Ukraine) said that the Sub-Conm ssion should take care not
to overload its agenda and should avoid duplication of work and waste of

resources. It was noteworthy that only one of the 10 draft decisions
recommended for adoption by the Commi ssion fell within the scope of the
Sub- Commi ssion's original mandate. Questions relating to the illicit transfer

of arns or the injurious effects of anti-personnel |andm nes were being

consi dered by other United Nations bodies and did not require Sub-Comr ssion
attention. The Sub-Comm ssion was undertaki ng an excessive nunber of studies,
sonme of the proposed studies could be carried out by the Secretariat wthout

t he appoi ntment of a special rapporteur, certain studies stayed on the

Sub- Commi ssion's agenda for year after year while others renmined bl ocked, and
many of the studies that had al ready been conpl eted were not adequately
publici zed



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 6

16. So far as nethods of work were concerned, he noted with satisfaction the
Sub- Commi ssion's adoption of a greatly shortened agenda for its forty-ninth
session. The decision to take no action in future on human rights situations
al ready under consideration in the Commi ssion's public procedures was
particularly wel cone, as was the fact that the Sub-Comm ssion had adopted only
three resol uti ons under the agenda item concerning the violation of human
rights in all countries, had rejected three draft resolutions under that item
and had decided to take no action on two further draft resolutions relating to
the human rights situation in specific countries.

17. M. NZIKQU (Congo) said that the Sub-Conm ssion had adopted its

resol ution 1997/1 when civil war had been in progress in his country. Since
the end of the war, on 15 Cctober 1997, the situation had i nproved

consi derably. The new Governnent had taken steps to ensure the return of

di spl aced people; the free circulation of people and goods; the
re-establishment of peace and security, through the reorganization of the
police, the dissolution of private mlitias and an arns-collection canpaign;
the restoration of economic and social activity, particularly the reopening of
hospital s and educational establishnments; the restoration of |egal action on
i ndi vidual rights and freedons; and the establishnment of transitiona
institutions to create the proper conditions for general elections.

18. While reiterating its appeal for technical assistance on human rights,
his Government requested, therefore, that the Sub-Comm ssion withdraw its
recommendati on that the Conmmi ssion should consider the situation of human
rights in the Congo at its current session

19. M. PADILLA (Guatemala) said that his country was a nulti-ethnic and

mul ticultural society, as reflected in the denocratizati on process, the peace
negoti ati ons concl uded on 29 Decenber 1996 and the subsequent Agreenent on the
Identity and Rights of Indigenous Peoples. |Its experiences had led it to
understand the crucial inportance of the Commission, at a time when nost
conflicts arose as a result of discrimnation against ethnic minorities within
States. The ideol ogical confrontations of the cold war had been repl aced by
confrontation based on cultural, religious or ethnic diversity.

20. That being so, the question arose as to what the Sub-Comm ssion's
function should be. In the first place, it nust establish an order of
priorities. 1t should work closely with other United Nations bodi es on
early-warning procedures. It should then work for the establishment of
effective prevention nmechani sms. The task was not an easy one, but there was
much expertise to draw on. Cooperation could also be sought with

i nternati onal acadenic bodies specializing in research on peace.

21. Advi sory services for countries like his own which had not yet overcone
all the problens associated with their past were greatly enhanced by reports
such as those on inpunity and on terrorism human rights and humanitarian | aw
In that context, his delegation agreed that, while States had a duty to
respect fundanental freedons and individual integrity, they also had an
obligation to protect individuals from attacks by other individuals or groups,
such as terrorists. It would be useful to have a statement of m ninum

humani tari an standards, to counteract the difficulties arising in the

i mpl enment ati on of the CGeneva Conventi ons.



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 7

22. Ms. CALLANGAN (Phili ppines) said that the Sub-Comm ssion had contri buted
much to the cause of human rights, but it could still benefit fromfurther
reformand rationalization. There was a particular need to focus on its
primary role as an advisory body of the Conmi ssion, to facilitate the
effective participation of NGOs and to inprove consultations with the various
mechani sms of the Commi ssion and other human rights bodies.

23. The gravity and urgency of the problemof trafficking in wonen and
children, particularly for sexual purposes, was such that her del egation would
again submt a draft resolution on the issue, stressing the need to elimnate
all forns of sexual violence and trafficking through the adoption of effective
measures at the national, regional and international levels. Concerted
action, with cooperation and political will on all sides, was required. As a
recent conference sponsored by her Governnment had concluded, the follow up
mechani sms to the Declaration and Agenda for Action of the World Congress

agai nst Commerci al Sexual Exploitation of Children needed to be strengthened
and the rel evant special rapporteurs and working group should continue to
treat the issue as a priority.

24, Ms. AUSTAD (Observer for Norway), speaking on behalf of the Nordic
countries, said that the nost serious violations of human rights - and the
nmost difficult to redress - tended to occur during internal conflict. The
Secretary-Ceneral's anal ytical report (E/CN. 4/1998/87 and Add.1l) made a usefu
contribution to identifying fundanental standards and setting out proposals.

25. Acts by private individuals were seen as crinmes punishabl e under

national |aw rather than human rights violations. VWhile arnmed groups were
bound by the provisions of international humanitarian | aw, there was a probl em
concerning the adequacy of human rights law with regard to the activities of
non- State actors, particularly when a Governnent was not in control of the
whole of its territory. Wlere there was a quasi-governmental authority in
part of a territory, it should be held responsible for applying human rights
standards in that territory but, given the divergent views on the issue and
its complexity, further study was needed.

26. Derogati on and other issues discussed in the report also required
further analysis and consultation. The Nordic countries intended therefore to
submt a draft resolution requesting the Secretary-General to continue
studying the issues identified for further clarification, in consultation with
the International Conmittee of the Red Cross (I CRC), given the rel evance of

i nternational humanitarian law in that regard.

27. M. VIGNY (Observer for Switzerland) said that international protection
for the nost fundamental human rights was sometines i nadequate, particularly
when countries were in crisis. The elaboration of m nimum humanitarian
standards shoul d redress the situation, particularly if they applied to al
parties, including not only State authorities but also non-State arned or
unarmed groups, individuals and international organizations. His delegation
thus wel coned the Secretary-General's analytical report (E/ CN. 4/1998/87), to
whi ch Switzerland had contributed, and supported, of course, the
recommendations it contained. A particularly appropriate reconmendati on was
that the views of Governments and other relevant actors should be requested.
Such consultations should include a request for witten information from al
the parties concerned and there should al so be informal neetings between
Governnments, United Nations bodies, intergovernnental bodies, the I CRC and



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 8

ot hers, which would extend the international community's awareness of the
i ssue. An informal sem nar under the aegis of the Commi ssion mght al so be
useful .

28. M. JEANNET (Observer for the International Cormittee of the Red Cross
(ICRC)) said that, while the Secretary-Ceneral's anal ytical report
(E/CN. 4/ 1998/ 87) was a wel cone contribution, further study was required,
particularly on the content, scope and status of any m ni mum humani tari an
standards and on the circunstances in which they would be used. At the sane
time the distinction should be maintai ned between international human rights
| aw and international humanitarian |law. They were currently conpl enmentary,
thus providing a better protection for fundanental rights, and any confusion
of the two - in relation to the use of arnmed force, for exanple - would be
regrettable. As the report stated, therefore, the international commnity
shoul d proceed with caution and bear in mnd that a listing of mninum
humani tari an standards did not necessarily anpunt to a standard-setting
exerci se.

29. It would al so be useful to undertake a nore systematic study of actua
situations of violence in order to achieve a better understanding of the
factors governing violations and the problens involved in inplementing

exi sting standards and thus of what would be required in practice. As the
report noted (para. 87), ICRC was currently engaged in a study of the rules of
customary international |aw, which would be helpful in determ ning the fina
formof the m ninum humanitarian standards.

30. The report of the Special Rapporteur on the question of the inmpunity of
perpetrators of human rights violations (civil and political)

(E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ 20) was an adnirable one. It should, however, be pointed
out that inpunity was a problemin peacetinme as well as during armed conflict,
on which the Special Rapporteur had concentrated his attention. |1CRC believed
t hat consi derati on should be given to a broader application of internationa
humanitarian law to inpunity, as was already the case with the basic
principles and guidelines on the right to reparation for victinms of human
rights violations. The issue could be considered by a group of experts, in
which 1 CRC woul d gl adly participate.

31. Lastly, he hoped that States would shortly denponstrate the politica

will to nove rapidly towards the establishnent of a permanent internationa
crimnal court which would be conplenentary to national jurisdictions and able
to prosecute people suspected of war crinmes, whether in international or
internal arned conflicts. It would undoubtedly have a deterrent effect,
issuing a warning to those responsible for international crinmes and a nessage
of hope for their victins.

32. Ms. GARCI A- MORENO (World Health Organi zation) said that WHO wi shed to
extend its participation in the area of wonen's health in the Sub-Conmi ssion
to the question of safe notherhood, one of nmany inportant aspects of wonen's
health. Half a mllion wonen or nore died every year fromthe conplications
of pregnancy and childbirth, the majority in Asia and sub-Saharan Africa, and
50 million nore suffered fromill health and disabilities fromthe sanme
causes. Maternal nortality showed the w dest di screpancy between devel opi ng
and devel oped countries, and w thin devel oping countries there were
significant dispartities between urban and rural areas; yet alnost all those
deat hs could be prevented at a relatively I ow cost. WHO estinmated that basic




E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 9

mat ernal care, including skilled attendants, prevention and treatnent of
conplications, fam ly planning and basic neonatal care woul d cost about US$ 3
per person in |owinconme countries. Less than half the wonen in the world had
access to such essential care. Communities, health centres and hospitals
shoul d be linked, in order to provide care when and where wonen needed it

nost .

33. The situation ran counter to the guarantees contained in the Convention
on the Elimnation of All Forns of Discrimnation against Wnmen. Moreover,
when a worman di ed from pregnancy-rel ated causes, it was not only a preventable
i ndi vi dual tragedy but a social and economic loss to fanm lies and communiti es.
There was a need for significant change in the way naternal health care was
provided and in the priorities of Governnents, agencies and NGOs, with the
establishnment of a proper |egal policy and regul atory franmework. The
political will, the necessary resources and strong concerted action were
required. WHO requested the Conmm ssion to recommend to the Sub- Comm ssion
that, together with WHO, it should prepare a report on wonmen's reproductive
health to draw attention to the need for action on the matter

34. Ms. SPALDI NG (World Federation for Mental Health) said that Commi ssion
deci sion 1997/107 had been the answer to her plea to build bridges with the
Commi ssion for Social Devel opment. The substantive |ink between the two
Commi ssi ons was i ndeed com ng about and she urged that a joint rapporteur be
assigned to the two Commi ssions under a conbined, streanlined budget for

mut ual | y mandated work. Such an appoi ntnent, together with the establishnent
of an onmbudsman, would facilitate the accountability and neasurabl e

i mpl enentati on of standards within the United Nations system

35. Ms. BAUTI STA (Latin American Federation of Associations of Relatives of
Di sappeared Detainees) said that inpunity for crinmes agai nst humanity was the
crime of the century and the biggest obstacle for countries in transition
since it made it inpossible to build a truly denocratic society. The issue
was still very nuch alive in Argentina, Uruguay, Chile, Brazil, Guatemala and
Peru, all of which had introduced inpunity |aws, of varying degrees.

I nvestigati ons had not been reopened; and decrees promnul gated by dictators had
been handed on to the successor denocracies. Simlar problens of inmpunity
were encountered in Mexico and Colonbia. It was essential therefore that the
Commi ssi on shoul d adopt urgently a set of principles to protect and pronote
human rights by conbating inpunity.

36. M . NARANG ( European Union of Public Relations) said that there were two
opposing trends in contenporary society: globalization in the nane of higher
economic growth and justice for all and the assertion of diversity and
dignity. Econom c devel opnent and social transformati on had, contrary to
expectations, increased rather than di mnished the intensity of ethnic and
regi onal consci ousness, a consciousness that, in many cases, related to
guestions of political autonony and self-determ nation. Another aspect of
that conflict was the conpatibility of group rights with individual rights.
Respect for cultural identity could inply a violation of universal human
rights and neasures to guarantee minority rights had produced a backl ash t hat
damaged relations with the nmajority.

37. One of the challenges facing the human rights community in com ng years
was thus the need to define processes to mtigate ethnic conflicts and begin a
constructive dial ogue. That could best be acconplished by a body of experts



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 10

acting with objectivity and a conmtnent to the human rights of all, arole
whi ch the Wrking Goup on Mnorities had begun to fill and should be
encouraged to continue.

38. M. NAQVI (Wbrld Muslim Congress) recalled a statenent made by one of

t he nmenbers of the Sub-Conmission at its forty-ninth session when introducing
a draft resolution on the human rights situation in India. That statenment had
listed a vast nunmber of hurman rights abuses and cases of discrimnation, which
he quoted at sone length. That draft resolution and the facts supporting it
were an indictment of the human rights situation in the so-called “Iargest
denocracy in the world”. Menbers of the Comm ssion should be aware of that
situation and do everything in their power to put an end to those systematic
vi ol ations of human rights by India.

39. M. BENGOA (Chai rman of the Sub-Conmm ssion on the Prevention of

Di scrimnation and the Protection of Mnorities) said that, he had noted four
mai n areas of response to the work of the Sub-Conm ssion. First, he had been
encouraged that the rationalization of its work was proceeding in the right
direction and should continue. Next, various speakers had referred to the
functions and mandate of the Sub-Conm ssion and had raised sone chal |l enges
that would give rise to discussion at its next session. The inportance of the
rel ati onshi p between the Sub-Conm ssion and NGOs had al so been hi ghlighted,
together with the need for increased participation of the sectors of civi

soci ety which they represented. He had taken note of the suggestion that the
Sub- Commi ssi on shoul d appoint a special rapporteur for econom c, social and
cultural rights. Mch interest had al so been expressed in the studies, and he
asked the Conmi ssion to informthe Sub-Conmi ssion of the topics for further
studies that it considered useful

40. M. LINDQU ST (Special Rapporteur on disability of the Comm ssion for
Soci al Devel opnent) said that he wel coned the increased visibility given to
disability at the current session and the increased presence of NGOs for the
di sabl ed. Fromthe general debate, he had noted the close |ink between the
situation of disabled people and the protection of human rights and the
undeni abl e i nk between poverty and disability. There was clearly a need for
a deeper understanding of the topic, and he would do what he could to pronote
the human rights dinension of disability in the effort to nove towards a

soci ety of inclusion.

QUESTI ON OF THE HUVAN RI GHTS COF ALL PERSONS SUBJECTED TO ANY FORM OF DETENTI ON
OR | MPRI SONMENT, | N PARTI CULAR:

(a) TORTURE AND OTHER CRUEL, | NHUVAN OR DEGRADI NG TREATMENT OR
PUNI' SHMENT;

(b) STATUS OF THE CONVENTI ON AGAI NST TORTURE AND OTHER CRUEL, | NHUMAN
OR DEGRADI NG TREATMENT OR PUNI SHVENT;

(c) QUESTI ON OF ENFORCED OR | NVOLUNTARY DI SAPPEARANCES



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 11

(d) QUESTI ON OF A DRAFT OPTI ONAL PROTOCOL TO THE CONVENTI ON AGAI NST
TORTURE AND OTHER CRUEL, | NHUVAN OR DEGRADI NG TREATMENT OR
PUNI SHMENT

(agenda item 8) (E/ CN. 4/1998/5, 32-35, 36/Rev.1l, 37 and Add.1, 38 and Add.1
and 2, 39 and Add.1 and Add. 3-5, 40 and Add.1 and 2, 41-43, 44 and Add.1
and 2, 111, 129 and 139; E/CN. 4/1998/ NGO 82; A/ 52/387)

41. M. TOSEVSKI (Chairman/ Rapporteur of the Wrking Goup on Enforced or
I nvol untary Di sappearances), introducing the Wrking G oup's report
(E/CN. 4/ 1998/ 43), said that he wished to highlight two issues of nmjor
concern: the question of conpensation and the worsening conditions under
whi ch the Working Goup was obliged to function within the United Nations
Secretari at.

42. Since its establishment in 1980, the Working Group had transmtted

over 47,000 cases of alleged di sappearances to 76 countries. Only

sonme 2,800 of them had been clarified and, though every case clarified nust be
seen as a success, the alnost 45,6000 cases outstandi ng was not encouragi ng.

Al t hough many of the unresolved cases dated to the 1970s or early 1980s and
nmost of the victins were probably |ong since dead, the Wirking G oup required
that the exact fate and whereabouts of the victim be established beyond
reasonabl e doubt in order to clarify a case.

43. Brazil had adopted a new approach, nanely, a |law that recogni zed as dead
persons missing in connection with their political activities during the
period 1961 to 1979 and thus allowed their relatives to obtain death
certificates and to receive conpensation fromthe State. Application of that
law had led to the clarification of 49 out of 56 outstanding cases. Another
met hod of clarifying old cases was the exhumation and identification of
remai ns from mass graves and ot her places of clandestine burial. That nethod
had al |l owed the Governnment of Chile to identify 231 persons who had been
killed nore than 20 years previously.

44. The Working G oup reconmended that all States with a consi derabl e nunber
of outstandi ng cases shoul d devel op a conprehensi ve programe of forensic
activities and should conpensate the fam lies of deceased victinms of enforced
di sappear ances.

45. The Working G oup was seriously concerned at the current situation of
its secretariat and the prospects for the near future. Its working methods
were | abour-intensive and required confidentiality, extensive support,

interest in the subject matter and consistent |egal expertise fromthe
Secretariat. |In the past, a small team of human rights officers and
secretarial staff had been assigned exclusively to the Wrking Goup but,
during the past five years, the tasks had been distributed anong staff nenbers
servicing other thematic mandates or even field missions. As a result, those
staff nmenbers could handle only about 65 per cent of the Goup' s tota
wor kl oad, thus greatly hanpering its dialogue with Governments and NGOs.

46. A recent internal redistribution of tasks in the Ofice of the
Hi gh Commi ssi oner had nade the situation still worse and the credibility of
the Working Group was declining and its activities beconi ng marginalized



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 12

Unl ess deci sive action was taken, the achi evements and inpact of the Working
Group since 1980 would be dissipated irretrievably and it |ooked to the
Conmi ssion to take such action

47. M. ALVAREZ (Observer for Costa Rica), referring to the draft optiona
protocol to the Convention against Torture and O her Cruel, |nhuman or
Degradi ng Treatnent or Punishnent, said that the Wrking Goup to prepare that
i nstrument had net five tines since its establishment in 1992, and had nade
maj or progress at its latest session. The draft optional protocol was

i ntended to establish a preventive mechani sm based on cooperation
confidentiality, independence, inpartiality and universality. It would not
undertake the consideration of individual cases but would evaluate the
prevailing conditions in places of detention and make recomendations to

i nprove practices.

48. Hi s del egation believed that it was essential to establish a financia
mechani smto provide funding for the technical cooperation needed to carry out
such operations and it supported the proposal to establish a voluntary fund
for the purpose. It was of the utnpst inportance that the mechani sm shoul d
enter into force and the mandate of the Working Goup should thus be extended
so that it could work out the remaining difficulties and be in a position to
submit to the Commission a final text ready for signature.

49. Ms. BARNES de CARLOTTO (I nternational Movenent for Fraternal Union Anbng
Races and Peopl es), speaking as President of the Association of the

Grandnot hers of the Plaza de Mayo, said that justice for the

30, 000 individual s detai ned and di sappeared during the nmilitary dictatorship
in Argentina had still not been achieved. The inpunity | aws passed by the
Governnent violated the many international human rights instrunments to which
Argentina was a party, since States were currently obliged to harnonize their
donmestic law with international |aw and actions such as genocide, torture and
enforced di sappearances had thus to be considered as crimes agai nst humanity
under domestic | aw.

50. For 20 years, the Grandnothers of the Plaza de Mayo had dedi cated their
lives to restoring to their stolen grandchildren their rights and especially

their identity. Although the inpunity |aws excluded pardon for those who had
abducted children, it was unjust that, when | ocated, those children should be
told to forget about their parents.

51. Ms. LACRAO X (Wbrld Organi zati on agai nst Torture) said that, although
freedomfromtorture was a non-derogable right explicitly affirmed in severa

i nternational human rights instrunents, it continued to occur on a daily basis
in many parts of the world. Corporal punishnment inposed for crimnal offences
in the Islamc Republic of Iran constituted torture and contravened
international law, as did the “npoderate physical pressure” during

i nterrogation authorized by the Governnent and Suprenme Court of |srael
Impunity for acts of torture was a major problem and she nentioned the

gl ari ng exanpl es of Mexico and Peru. The only solution was the full

uni versal and pronpt ratification of the Convention against Torture and O her
Cruel , Inhuman or Degradi ng Treatnent or Puni shnment.

52. Ms. DOAD (I nternational Pen) said she wished to draw the Conmmi ssion's
attention to a wi despread pattern of violation of the right to freedom of
expression in the nane of national security. Legislation allegedly ainmed at



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 13

protecting State sovereignty was all too often used to stifle the peacefu
expression of views in general and by journalists in particular. 1In the end,
such action exacerbated difficult situations, increased m sunderstandi ng and
further destabilized the State. Wile her organi zati on wel comed sone recent
encour agi ng devel opnments in that regard in Turkey, Peru and the Republic of
Korea, the legislation in each of those countries still needed to be
re-evaluated so that its scope to proscribe free expression m ght be

el i m nat ed.

53. M. &llegos Chiriboga (Ecuador), Vice-Chairnan, took the Chair.

54. M. TEITELBAUM (Anerican Association of Jurists) said that, inits
written statenment (E/ CN. 4/1998/ NG 20), which was unfortunately available in
Spani sh only, his organization had expressed a generally positive view of the
draft set of principles for action to conmbat inmpunity (E CN. 4/ Sub. 2/1997/20)
but had highlighted sonme inportant om ssions and deficiencies and had

subm tted proposals to renmedy them Inpunity was still, alas, the dom nant
note with regard to human rights viol ations, and he nentioned cases in Brazil
Chi |l e and Col onbi a.

55. A nunber of Argentine soldiers who had taken part in the

Fal kl and I sl ands (Malvinas) war in 1982 were still mssing, and their

rel ati ves had been unable to obtain information concerning their fate. He
appeal ed to the Governnents of Argentina and the United Kingdomto assist the
Wor ki ng Group on Enforced or Involuntary D sappearances to clarify those
cases.

56. M. MENDEL (Article XIX: the International Centre against Censorship),
havi ng wel comed the report of the Special Rapporteur on freedom of opinion and
expression (E/ CN. 4/1998/40), said that his organization wi shed to enphasize
the right of citizens to information held by the State and the duty of
broadcasters funded by States, to ensure that issues of public interest were
reported in a balanced and fair manner.

57. VWhile the use of new information technol ogies to disseni nate racist and
sexi st views, and pornography, was very troubling, the tendency of Governments
to regul ate and control access thereto was even nore so. His organization
fully agreed with the Special Rapporteur's reconmendation that no neasures be
adopt ed goi ng beyond the restrictions on freedom of expression and information
perm tted under international |aw.

58. Crimnal defamation | aws were unnecessary to protect reputations or
public order which, in npbst countries, were adequately protected by civi

def amati on and general public order laws. \While denpcratic societies were

i ncreasingly accepting the principle that public figures nmust tolerate a
greater degree of criticismthan private citizens, crimnal defamation [aws in
many countries afforded special protection to senior political figures and
were used to punish or stifle legitimate criticismand dissent. In view of
the difficult questions raised by such |aws, his organization urged the
Speci al Rapporteur to include in his next report a conmentary on both crimna
and civil defamation actions and their effects on the right to freedom of
opi ni on, expression and information

59. M. OZDEN (Centre Europe-Tiers Monde) called on the Governnent of
Tunisia to release inmediately and restore his rights to the Vice-President of



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 14

t he Tuni sian League for Human Rights, M. Khémais Ksila, who had been given a
heavy prison sentence on 11 February 1998 for defanmati on agai nst public order
and constituted bodies, dissem nating false information to disturb public
order, and inciting citizens to break the Iaws of the country. The charges
related to a statenent, which had not been published, denouncing the
harassment of hinself and his fam |y and expressing his opinion about the
human rights situation in Tunisia.

60. The former president of the Council of State of Ceneva, who had attended
M. Ksila's trial as an observer, reported, after analysing the charges in
detail, that they did not hold water and that the trial had shown that Tunisia
did not respect the fundanental principles of human rights, especially those
contained in the Universal Declaration of Human Ri ghts.

61. M. ROMO (Franciscans International) said that torture was still part
and parcel of the adm nistration of justice in many countries. In Mexico, for
exanpl e, the practice of torture to secure confessions or information was

i ncreasing and went hand in hand with the selective application of justice for
political cases, which led to a high degree of inpunity. The corruption of
the justice system produced a | ack of trust so that people took the law into
their own hands. Hi s organization thus endorsed the reconmendati ons contai ned
in the report on his visit to Mexico (E/ CN. 4/1998/38/Add. 2) of the Specia
Rapporteur on questions relating to torture.

62. In Colonbia, one of the main factors in human rights violations was the
justice systemitself, there being a general presunption of guilt. Prisons

in that country were appallingly overcrowded and did nothing for the
rehabilitation of convicts. Crimnal procedures pernmitted pre-trial detention
in nost cases, which could be extended for up to two years. Sone 45 per cent
of the country's prison population was awaiting trial. Although various
United Nations bodies had nade recommendations to the CGovernnent of Col onbi a,
it had not so far taken the necessary neasures. The report of the 1996 visit
to Col ombi a by the Special Rapporteur on the independence of judges and

| awyers had still not been published. Consequently, the Comm ssion should
urge the Governnent of Colonbia to inplenent inmediately the recomrendati ons
that had been nade for the inprovenment of the justice system and request the
O fice of the Hi gh Comm ssioner to keep a close eye on the situation there and
to publish inmmediately the Special Rapporteur's report on his visit.

63. Ms. GUILLET (International Federation of Human Ri ghts Leagues) said that
her organi zation and its affiliate, the Mauritani an Association for Human

Ri ghts (AVDH), appealed to the Commi ssion to condemm such serious attacks on
human rights defenders as the trial and sentencing of four of themin
Mauritania. The presidential pardon which had freed thema few days
previously was to be wel coned, but it did not erase their iniquitous
sentencing after a parody of a trial

64. Her organi zation and its affiliate, the Belarus Hunan Ri ghts League,
were very satisfied with the report on his visit to Belarus by the Specia
Rapporteur on freedom of opinion and expression (E/ CN. 4/1998/40/ Add. 1) and
appeal ed to the Belarusian authorities to inplement the Special Rapporteur's
recommendati ons as soon as possible. The Conmi ssion should continue to
nonitor the situation in Belarus.



E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ SR. 26
page 15

65. Her organization and its affiliate, the Viet Nam Comm ttee for the

Def ence of Human Rights, reiterated their concerns regarding the deliberate
stifling of freedom of opinion and expression in the Socialist Republic of
Viet Nam and requested the Conmission to do its utnbpst to ensure that the
followup visit by the Wirking Group on Arbitrary Detention would take place
during the current year

66. Her organization and its Northern Ireland affiliate, the Committee for
the Adm nistration of Justice, welcomed the report of the Special Rapporteur
on the independence of judges and | awyers on his visit to the province
(E/CN. 4/ 1998/ 39/ Add. 4) and called on the Governnent of the United Kingdomto
respond rapidly to his recommendati ons and, in particular, to establish an

i ndependent judicial inquiry into the nmurder of the well-known |awer,

M. Patrick Finucane.

67. Her organization and its various Peruvian affiliates welconed the
abolition of the so-called “faceless” tribunals and the first rel eases of

i nnocent prisoners, but were concerned at the worsening human rights situation
in other respects in Peru and called upon the Conmi ssion to continue to foll ow
closely the human rights situation in that country.

68. Ms. PARES (Pax Romena) said there were still far too many places in
which arbitrary detention and illicit nmethods of obtaining informtion were
enpl oyed on a daily basis by forces supposed to be uphol di ng order and
justice. Her organization shared the concern expressed by the Specia
Rapporteur on questions related to torture in the report on his visit to
Mexico (E/CN. 4/1998/38). |In East Tinor, the |Indonesian authorities continued
to disregard and violate international standards, despite Comm ssion

resol uti on 1997/ 63.

69. In the Republic of Korea, a human rights defender had recently been
prosecuted on the basis of the National Security Law, whose repeal had been
recommended by the Human Rights Committee. The 1996 recomrendati on by the
Conmi ttee against Torture to the Governnent of the Republic of Korea that an

i ndependent body shoul d i nspect detention centres and prisons had not yet been
conplied wth.

70. A new policy in Peru of building prisons in unsuitable |ocations was
causi ng grave concern. In the case of one prison, the Human Rights Committee
had concl uded that conditions there violated several articles of the

I nternational Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




